
St. Matthews Fire Protection District 
 

1950 — 1952 
 

 

This is one of many sections that contain information, documents, letters, newspaper 
articles, pictures, etc. of the St. Matthews Fire Protection District.  They have been 
collected and arranged in chronological order.  These items were collected, orga-
nized and entered into a computerized database by Al Ring. Last revised in 2023. 
 
There were many people who helped with this project over the years, however 3 de-
server special mention.  Rick Albers, John M. Monohan, Jr. and Jack Monohan. 
 
 
All graphics have been improved to make the resolution as good as possible, but the 
reader should remember that many came from copies of old newspaper articles.  
This also applies to other items such as documents, letters, etc.  Credit to the source 
of the documents, photos, etc. is provided whenever it was available.  We realize that 
many items are not identified and regret that we weren’t able to provide this infor-
mation.  As far as the newspaper articles that are not identified, 99% of them would 
have to be from one of three possible sources.  The Courier-Journal, The Louisville 
Times or one of the Voice publications. 
 
Please use this information as a reference tool only.  If the reader uses any of the in-
formation for any purpose other than a reference tool, they should get permission 
from the source.   
 

 



1950 
 

The population of Jefferson County was 482,285 representing a gain of 25% in the last decade 
 
 
Lyndon Volunteer Fire Department:  In 1949 meetings were held in Lyndon about forming a fire 
department.  Action was taken and about 15 men showed interest in being firefighters. 
 

In order to be somewhat familiar with the basics of firefighting, the Lyndon Volunteers asked St. 
Matthews Volunteer Fire Department to take on the task of training them at the St. Matthews Fire 
station on Breckinridge Lane.  
 

The Lyndon Volunteer Fire department Association was incorporated on March 15, 1950.  In May 
their first piece of fire apparatus was delivered.  The first “fire house” was in front of the then, 
Keeling Super Market, with a tarpaulin being used as its “house.” 
 

The St. Matthews Fire Department, securing a pumper from the discontinued County Fire De-
partment, agreed to lend the use of Betsy, their 1931 Seagrave pumper to Lyndon.  Thus the 
Lyndon Volunteer Fire Department was on its way.                     More on their history under 1949 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Marty Kamer:  Born in Louisville in 1918.  He joined the Kroger Company while still in school, 
and became manager of the Kroger store at 3717 Lexington Road.  He joined the department dur-
ing 1935 and has served the department as firefighter, Lieutenant, Captain, Major and Assistant 
Chief from 1956 to 1964 when he retired from the department.  He became a Board member in 
1948 and served until 1964.  He was re-elected to the Board in 1971.  He reactivated as a volunteer 
firefighter again in the mid-1970’s.  In 1977, he was hired along with Mike Davis and Sam McCu-
ne as the first three paid firefighters with St. Matthews.  His responsibilities included that of Fire 
Marshal and he was promoted to the rank of Major for the second time in his fire department ten-
ure.  He eventually retired as a paid firefighter, but remained as a volunteer Marshal.  He finally 
retired completely from the department in 1995 after 58 years of service to the community.  He 
enjoys the status of Lifetime Membership. 

 



1950 
 

Courtesy, http://www.hcfd.org/Historynew.htm              Harrods Creek Fire Department Started 
 
The need for a fire department in our area became apparent in the early 1950's.  Prior to the for-
mation of Harrods Creek Volunteer Fire Department Inc., the only fire protection came from the 
St. Matthews Fire Department miles away.  
  
Those in the community who recognized this need formed a small but industrious group who slow-
ly gathered momentum and money.  Most of the effort required going door-to-door, and by Sep-
tember 25, 1951 the first list of contributions and pledges was documented.  A total of 101 citizens 
gave from $500 to $50 to help get the fire department off the ground. 
 
John Lang became our first fire chief, a Ford Pirsch pumper was ordered, and construction began 
on the first fire house at 6417 River Road, about 200 feet south of the Harrods Creek Bridge.  By 
the Fall of 1952, Station One was completed mostly by firefighters own labor.  This small, two bay 
garage still stands today and is being used by an individual as a refurbishing business.  If you look 
closely, "Harrods Creek Fire Dept." is slightly still legible above the bay doors.  Open house for 
the new station was held on June 6, 1953. 
 
On February 25, 1964, James Ross Todd was elected chief.  Under his leadership, Harrods Creek 
became a taxing district to insure payment from all property owners served by the volunteer fire-
men.  No longer would our volunteer firemen have to solicit contributions for support.  
 
In May of 1969, Ross Todd asks Terrell Dickey, Jr. to take over as chief.  In the same year, H-7 a 
Hahn was purchased a named in memory of Ross Todd. 
 
May 1970, Our original fire truck, H-1, a Ford Pirsch is sold to Lexington VFD, IN. May 1972 
Jack Dayton elected chief. 1974 April 3, tornado hits area. In November Leonard Heydt is ap-
pointed chief. July 1, 1977 First run from new (present day) Station One at 8905 U.S. Hwy 42. 
 
The 1980's brought on many new fire apparatus as we replaced our aging original equipment.  In 
March of 1984 we purchased a GMC E-One Rescue/Brush Truck assigned Unit 1279.  On January 
25, 1985 we put into service Unit 1232, an E-One Hurricane 1250 GPM pumper, and on February 
16 of that year Unit 1256, a Hendrickson / Grumman / Snorkel 1250 GPM squirt joined our fami-
ly. 
  
August 1, 1985 marked the day our first boat went into service.  Unit 1222 was sold to New Albany 
Township V.F.D. on February 23,1987.  And "Quad 4," Unit 1244, was sold to McCulloch F.D. 
June 27,1988.  An addition was added to Station One in the Summer of 1992. 
  
Harrods Creek Fire Department continues to grow into the 21st Century with the purchase of two 
Spartan / 3D pumpers and a Spartan / 3D / Nova Quintech articulating aerial apparatus in the mid 
1990's.  We began an EMS response program   March of 1996 to fill the increasing role that fire-
fighting continues to take in emergency medicine.  Our volume of fire runs  was 562 and 274 EMS 
runs in 1998, showing higher numbers each year. This is compared to only around 50 fire runs a 
year when we began in the 1950's. 
        
If you live in our area, you can be part of a fire department which is always taking on new chal-
lenges in innovative and exciting ways striving to be the best at what we do.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
 

Courtesy, http://www.hcfd.org/Historynew.htm              Harrods Creek Fire Department Started 
 

 



1950 
 

Courtesy, http://www.prpfire.org/history/index.htm        Pleasure Ridge Park Fire Department 
Started 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Before our department was formed in February 1950, this area was covered by the Jefferson County Fire Department which 
consisted of three districts with one pumper in each district. Southwest Jefferson County was considered district three. The 
County donated its third district pumper to the newly formed Pleasure Ridge Park Fire Department to use as its only appa-
ratus. The vehicle was stored in a Quonset hut that was shared with the Jefferson County Police where the present Southwest 
Government Center is located at 7219 Dixie Hwy. The department covered an area of approximately 35 square miles, from 
the cities of Louisville and Shively to the north, Third Street on the east, Ashby Lane to the south and the Ohio River to the 
west. These boundaries remained basically the same until we merged with the South Dixie Fire District in 2004.  
 

In October of 1950, a taxing district was formed and our name was changed to the Pleasure Ridge Park Fire District. We pur-
chased our first new pumper, a 1952 Pirsch , in January of 1952 for $9270.63. Our first fire station was built at 5417 Valley 
Station Rd in 1955 and was named Station 2. It was built to better cover the southern part of the district that was experiencing 
rapid growth. Station 2 is still in operation to this day, although it has had to have some additions built on over the years to 
accommodate expansion. Station 1 was built in 1958 at 4500 Kerrick Lane and the Quonset hut was finally abandoned. Sta-
tion 1 also housed the district headquarters and the Chief's Office. 
 

As the area grew, so did the number of fire stations. In 1963, Station 3 was added on Terry Rd to cover the western part of the 
district. Station 4 was built on Cane Run Rd in 1964 to cover the north and western areas. Station 5 was built in 1976 to cover 
the north and eastern areas. Finally Station 6 was built in 1992 as a regional training center and fire station for the new River-
port area. During this time, our two busiest firehouses, Stations 1 and 3, had new and bigger stations built to accommodate 
more equipment. The current Station 3 was completed in 1981 next door to the original station. Along with a new Station 3, a 
separate Headquarters was built at 8504 Terry Rd. The old Station 1 was razed to make room for the current one which was 
completed in February 1992. 
 

Over the years, as technology advanced so did the means by which our firefighters were alerted to a fire. Originally calls were 
answered and dispatched directly by our radio room which was located in the original Station 1 on Kerrick Lane. It was mod-
estly furnished with a tube type base radio and desk top microphone in the corner of the room. A flex line with all the streets 
in the district sat on a metal chair. A mag-needle telephone on the wall was used to activate the roof sirens. During the day, a 
dispatcher was on duty in the radio room. At night, calls were answered at Chief Ernie Bohler's house on Rose Farm Dr. His 
wife, known as "Ma" Bohler, answered the phone and dispatched the calls over a base radio located in their house. When a 
call was received, the dispatcher would key the microphone open and would give three short blasts with a bicycle horn to alert 
the firefighters at home who used open monitors to receive the calls. At the same time, the roof sirens were activated to alert 
any personnel who were not at home that there was a fire. Once at the firehouse, the dispatcher would give the type and loca-
tion to the apparatus. This procedure remained the same until the 1980's when we started using fire pagers similar to what are 
still in use today. 
 

The radio room moved out of Station 1 in 1983 and into the new Headquarters on Terry Rd. PRP continued to dispatch their 
own runs until August of 1987 when the dispatchers were transferred to the first career engine and the Louisville Fire Depart-
ment, who under contract dispatched all the 21 County Fire Departments. Finally, in the middle 1990's, the system which 
exists today took shape. All calls for service and dispatching of County Fire Departments were transferred to the Jefferson 
County Police Telecommunications Center at 768 Barret Ave.  
 
When the dispatch personnel were transferred to the career engine, we became what is known as a Combination Department. 
We now have two career engine companies with five members each to augment the volunteer force Monday through Friday 
from 6:00 A.M. until 5:00 P.M. when most volunteers have to work their regular jobs.  
 
As we enter the new Millennium, we have been looking forward to anticipate the future needs of the communities we serve. 
The district, over the past few years has been replacing its fleet of fire apparatus. Along with this, our training division has 
constructed a multistory drill tower to provide more advanced training to our personnel. In 2004, we merged with the South 
Dixie Fire District and hired our first 24-hour career crew. We are doing this to better serve our community for the next fifty 
years. 

 
 

 
 



1950 
Courtesy, http://www.southoldhamfire.com/index_files/Page491.htm    South Oldham Fire De-
partment Started 
 
The South Oldham Volunteer Fire Department was estab-
lished in 1950.  The original Fire Station, located at 6412 
Railroad Avenue,  was built in 1950, by volunteers. Their 
first apparatus (5423) was a 1950 Chevrolet, with a 500gpm 
Midwest pump. The Department still has this apparatus and it 
is completely operational and is used as a parade piece on-
ly.  The Department still has the original building and it is 
used for storage. 
  
The original dispatching was done from the Stoess Hardware 
Store & the Stoess Funeral Home. 
  
The original funding was from subscriptions. 
  
A fire taxing district was created in the 1970’s, to provide a 
more stable and reliable source of revenue.  We cover ap-
proximately 25 square miles.  
  
In 1976, a centralized emergency dispatch center (Oldham 
County Dispatch - OCD) was started. 
  
South Oldham was the first fire department in KY to have 5” 
hose. 
  
A new fire station was built in 1979, located at 6710 West 
Highway 146.  This was used until 2002, and is currently 
used as an Oldham County Government Center Branch Of-
fice. 
  
A part time (weekday) paid staff was started in 1996, to sup-
plement the volunteers. 
  
With an ever growing run volume, growth of the community 
and expanding needs for the fire department, a new and mod-
ern fire station was completed in 2002, located at 6310 Old 
LaGrange Road, here in Crestwood.  This building should 
serve the Department and Community for many years to 
come. 
  
Again, with increasing run volumes and daily responsibilities, 
the Department started its first 24/48 hour shift paid firefight-
ers in September of 2006. 
  
In October 2009, the Fire District became proactive and pur-
chased land in the Brownsboro Community area, for a future 
fire station to, one day, better serve that area of our Fire Dis-
trict, as the an-
ticipated devel-
opment in that 
area increases. 
 



1950 
 

Courtesy Marty Kamer:                    Unknown articles but believed to be from the early 1950’s. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1950 
 

Courtesy Marty Kamer:                    Unknown articles but believed to be from the early 1950’s. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
 

Courtesy Marty Kamer:  Doris Simpson was Assistant Secretary from 1950 to 1953 so this letter is 
from that time period.                        Solicitation Letter:   NOTE Letter Head 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
1950, Solicitation Letter: 
 



1950 
 

January 5, 1950, Board meeting: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
 

January 6, 1950, Solicitation Letter: 



1950 

January 12, 1950:  The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 



1950 
January 12, 1950:  The Voice Of St. Matthews: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 10, 1950, The Courier Journal 



1950 
January 13, 1950:  The Jeffersonian: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
January 15 & 16, 1950,  The Courier-Journal:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
 

January 14, 1950:  The Jefferson County Fire Department was disbanded by Fiscal Court after 
less than 4 years of operation. 
 
The Voice reported a $22,000.00 fire that completely destroyed the Tavern Bar & Grill.  There was 
an explosion in the boiler room which led to the fire.  Two County units, one St. Matthews unit and 
one Middletown unit fought the blaze with six hose lines. 
 
The house of Mrs. Alex Farnsley, aunt of the Mayor of Louisville, was damaged by fire.  A child 
playing with matches on the second floor was believed to have been the cause.  The entire second 
floor and attic were gutted.  Damage was estimated to be $10,000.00.  The home was located at 255 
Chenoweth Lane. 
 
Courtesy The Courier-Journal, January 16, 1950:     
 
                                                                   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
 

 
Courtesy The Voice Of St. Matthews, January 19, 1950:     
 

                                                                 
 Courtesy The Jeffersonian, January 20 ,1950: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Fire Houses To Become Police Stations 
 
The Jefferson County fire stations of Mid-
dletown, Newburg and Pleasure Ridge Park, are 
being converted into county police stations.  Dis-
continuance of the Jefferson County Fire Depart-
ment last Saturday marked the end to a contro-
versy which has been ____ for the last two years. 
 
The County, unable to equip and maintain suffi-
cient numbers of stations so that each unit should 
not have too much ground ___________ proved 
to be unable to _____ lower insurance rates, or to 
substantially reduce the fire hazard, it was con-
cluded.  Just what step the Fiscal Court will take 
right away to assist, the volunteers to increase 
their efficiency other than to appoint a coordina-
tor to direct consolidation of their services, has 
not been announced 
 
Fire Chief Claud Thompson, reacting to the 
Court’s order to abolish the Fire Department, 
said, There are no hard feelings.  I feel that the 
people of  Jefferson County know the department 
has given them a much-needed service. 
 
At the meeting Wednesday the Fiscal Count ap-
pointed R. Davis McAfee as coordinator to work 
with the present Volunteer units and to assist to 
establishing new local departments. 
 
 



1950 
 
January 26, 1950, The Voice Of St. Matthews:                  January 30, 1950, Letter: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



1950 
 
February 4, 1950, The Courier-Journal:   February 8, 1950, Letter: 

 
 



1950 
 
February 9, 1950:  Board meeting:   



1950 

 
February 13, 18 & March 8, 1950:  Letter:   



1950 
 

February 14, 1950, The Courier-Journal,  in 2023, STMFD would respond to this are.  EDITED 



1950 
 

March 9, 1950, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   



1950 
 

March 9, 1950, Board meeting:   



1950 
 

March 20, 1950, Letter:       March 23, 1950, The Courier-Journal; 



1950 
 

March 23, 1950, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   

 



1950 
March 1950, Fire Run Reports 



1950 
March 31, 1950, The Jeffersonian:     April 13, 1950, The Courier-Journal: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 28, 1950, The Courier-Journal:   



1950 
 
May 4, 1950, Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



1950 
May 11, 1950, The Courier-Journal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



1950 

 
May 15, 1950, Letter:                                                                         May 16, 1950, Letter: 

 
 
 

 
May 19, 1950, The Jeffersonian: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



1950 
May 22, 1950, Letter: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 21, 1950, The Courier-Journal; 



1950 
June 26, 1950: AMENDMENT TO THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF THE  

ST. MATTHEWS VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSOCIATION  BR-71   p-431, 432 
 



1950 
June 26, 1950: AMENDMENT TO THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF THE  

ST. MATTHEWS VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSOCIATION  BR-71   p-431, 432 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 19, 1950, Fire Run report 
 



1950 
June 26, 1950: AMENDMENT TO THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF THE  

ST. MATTHEWS VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSOCIATION  BR-71   p-431, 432 
This certificate of amendment to the articles of Incorporation of St. Matthews Volunteer Fire 
Association. 
WITNESSETH:  That the undersigned being the President and secretary of St. Matthews 
Volunteer Fire Association, a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Kentucky, the 
Articles of Incorporation being recorded in the office of the County Court Clerk of Jefferson 
County, Kentucky, and the secretary of state at Frankfort, Kentucky, do hereby certify that a 
majority of the members of the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Association who were present and 
voting at a meeting duly called upon notice of the specific purpose to amend Article VII of the 
articles of Incorporation, as hereinafter set out, which meeting was held at the fire house of the St. 
Matthews Volunteer Fire association on Thursday, May 4, 1950, consented that the Articles of 
Incorporation be amended by striking out Article VII of the original Articles of Incorporation and 
substituting a new article VII so that Article VII shall read as a whole as follows: 
ARTICLE VII 
The affairs of the corporation shall be conducted by a Board of eight Directors who shall be 
elected at the annual meeting of the corporation on the second Wednesday of July, 1950 and the 
second Wednesday of each July of each year thereafter in the office of the corporation in Jefferson 
County, Kentucky. 
The Directors shall be classified with respect to the time for which they shall severally hold office, 
by dividing them into four classes to be known as Classes A, B, C, and D.  Of the Directors first 
chosen, Class A shall consist of two Directors each to hold office for one year, Class B shall consist 
of two Directors, each to hold office for two years, Class C shall consist of two Directors each to 
hold office for three years, and Class D shall consist of two Directors each to hold office for four 
years.  At each annual election, beginning with the second Wednesday of July, 1951, the successors 
to the class of Directors, whose term shall expire in the year, shall be elected to hold office for the 
term of four years so that the term of office of one class of Directors shall expire in each year; but 
each Director of whatever class shall hold office until his successor shall have been elected or 
qualified, or until his death or until he shall resign or shall have been removed.  Except with 
respect to their respective terms of office, all Directors shall have equal powers. 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF 
the President and secretary of 
St. Matthews Volunteer Fire 
Association, a corporation, 
have hereunto signed their 
names this 26th day of June, 
1950. 
John M. Monohan, Jr., 
President  George E. 
Miller, Secretary. 
 
June 28, 1950:   
 
 

 



1950 
June 29, 1950, Board meeting:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1950 
June 29, 1950, Board meeting:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1950 
June 30, 1950, The Jeffersonian:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

July 2 & 7, 1950, Fire Run Reports 
 



1950 
 
July 5, 1950, Letter:       July 8, 1950, The Courier-Journal  

 



1950 
 
July 12, 1950, Board meeting: 
 
 



1950 
 

Courtesy St. Matthews The Crossroads of Beargrass, 1999, by Samuel W. Thomas, 1950 Aerial View of St. Matthews 
Triangle showing Wallace Center under construction.  R. G. Potter Collection, 5236, University of Louisville 
Photographic Archives. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Courtesy St. Matthews The Crossroads of Beargrass, 1999, by Samuel W. Thomas, 1550 National Oil Corp. service 
station pumping Conoco gasoline on Snellville Road east of Meridian, which runs diagonally in the background, 1950 
ZV1 35-5OU, Jefferson County Historic Preservation and Archives.  
   



1950 

 

Courtesy St. Matthews The Crossroads of Beargrass, 1999, by Samuel W. Thomas, Old Covington Arterburn 
residence in 1950 before development took place along Shelbyville Road. ZV40-5OU.  Jefferson County Historic 
Preservation and Archives. 

Courtesy of Bluegrass-St. Matthews Historical Society:  March , 1950, Current strip stores 



1950 
 

Courtesy of Bluegrass-St. Matthews Historical Society:  July, 1950 
 

 
Courtesy The Voice of St. Matthews, April 20, 1950: 4 Page —Advertisement  It’s Time To 
Unite All Of Our Forces To Protect and Develop St. Matthews         This photo accompanied 
article 



1950 
 

Courtesy The Voice of St. Matthews, The Voice-Jeffersonian, April 9, 1970:  Various 
History Articles!!                 This photo was included 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 13, 1950, The Voice Of St. Matthews:                 July 17, 1950, The Voice Of St. Matthews:                                        

 



1950 
 

July 14, 1950, The Jeffersonian:                                        July 21, 1950, The Jeffersonian: 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
 

July 19, 1950, Letter: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
 

August 3, 1950, Board meeting:   



1950 
 

August 3, 7 & 30, 1950, Letters: 
August 11, 1950, The Jeffersonian:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August 6, 1950, The Courier-Journal 



1950 
 

August 6, 1950, The Courier-Journal: 

 



1950 
 

August 1950, Fire Run Reports 



1950 
 

      August 18, 1950, The Jeffersonian:        
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
      August 30, 1950, Letter:        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August 31, 1950, The Courier-Journal: Edited    



1950 
 
August 31, 1950, The Courier-Journal: Edited    



1950 
 September 6, 1950:  Letter:  Bid on Future S1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
 
September 7, 1950: Board 
meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 11, 1950 
 
 



1950 
September 13, 1950: 

 
 

September 14, 1950, The Courier-Journal:  September 21, 1950, The Courier-Journal:
 EDITED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
September 27, 1950, Letter: 

 
 
 



1950 
September 1950, Fire Run Reports 



1950 
October 2, 1950, Letter:   
 
 
 

 



1950 
 

October 5, 1950: Board meeting:   



1950 
October 9 & 15, 1950, Letter:   
 

 
 



1950 
October 15, 1950, The Courier-Journal:  

 
 
 



1950 

October 15, 1950, The Courier-Journal:  

 
 
 



1950 
October 15, 1950, The Courier-Journal:  

 
 
 



1950 
 

October 21, 25, & 31, 1950, Letters: 



1950 
 

October 22, 1950, The Courier-Journal:  This will become the Kinglan Subdivision off of  
Rudy Lane.  A street called Old Stone Lane will go to the old Rudy hose. 



1950 
 

October 26, 1950, The Courier-Journal: 



1950 
 

November 2, 1950, Board meeting: 



1950 

November 5, 1950, The Courier-Journal    November 3 & 24, 1950, The Jeffersonian:   



1950 
 

November 6, 1950, Letter: 



1950 
November 17, 1950: 

November 25, 1950, Fiore Run Report 

 
 
 



1950 
 

December 7, 1950:  Board meeting:   

Notice the Boards feeling of 
Mr. Whitehead who owned the 
present fire station. 



1950 
 

December 14, 1950, The Louisville-Times:  December 20, 1950, The Courier-Journal 
 

 

 

Delinquent parents, from $3,600 to $4,000. 



1950 
 

December 22, 1950, The Jeffersonian: 

 
 

 



 1950 
1950 or 1951:  Testing fire hose along Westport Road, look west along the side of the old train 
station.  Al Haeberlin on hose, Jack 
Monohan standing. 
 
December Fire Run Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 

 
Sample Fire Reports from 1950: 



1950 
Sample Charges for Fire Runs: 



1950 
Sample Charges for Fire Runs: 



1950 
 

1950 Roster: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1950 
 
 Board Of Directors 

 
Fred C. Boss  
Marty A. Kamer 
George E. Miller 
John M. Monohan Jr. 
Louis H. Schweitzer 
James “JP” Terry 
William Leland Wilson 
Joseph B. “Joe” Zehnder 
 
 

Officers 
Chief John M. Monohan Jr. 
Assistant Chief Richard C. Herdt 
Captain James “JP” Terry 
Captain John F. Westerman 
Lieutenant Marty A. Kamer 
Lieutenant George R. Westwood 

Firefighters 
C. Fred Baringer 
John A. Beierle 
Morris “Jughead” Blake 
John H. Cauthorn 
Daniel Clark 
Raymond Crabtree 
Denny Engnehl 
Ed Foley 
Charles H. Hahn 
W. Rich Herdt 
Robert W. “Bob” Hild 
John W. “Bud” Jansen 
John V. Kaster 
Joseph L. “Joe” Kempf 
Joe A. Lentz 
 

1950 
 

Byron S. Martin 
Henry L. McCoy 
Welles P. Meyer 
J. C. Reed 
Frank R. “Randy” Robertson 
Paul B. Sauer 
George J. Stoll, Jr. 
Robert P. Wathen 
R. M. “Dick” Wheeler, Jr. 
Raymond K. “Ray” Wilson 
Jim Wright 
Melchior R. “Melch” Zehnder 
 
 



1951 
January 14, 1951, The Courier-Journal 



1951 
January 21, 1951, The Courier-Journal 



1951 
January 21, 1951, The Courier-Journal 
 

 
 January 30, 1951, The Courier-Journal—-edited 



1951 
January 21, 1951, The Courier-Journal  STMFGD later used this as a training fire 

 
 
  



1951 
January 12, 1951, The Courier-Journal:   January 19, 1951, The Jeffersonian: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

         February 8, 1951:  Board meeting:   
 
 
February 27, 1951, Fire Report 



1951 
February 20, & March 6, 1951, Letters: 
 

 
March, 8, 1951:  Board meeting:   

February 21, 1951, The Courier-
Journal 



1951 
March 2, 1951, The Courier-Journal:   



1951 
March 10, 1951: 
 
 
March 14, 1951, The Courier-Journal  edited 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 1, 1951, Fire Report 
 

 
 



1951 
North Oldham Fire Department——Courtesy—http://www.nofd.org/         Started early 1951 
 

What would you do if you called the fire department and nobody came?? 
 

Some citizens learned the answer to that question early in 1951 in Skylight, in Northern Oldham County when a barn loaded 
with corn burned to the ground.  A call was made to the LaGrange City Fire Department who refused to respond outside of 
the city limits.  Neighboring communities of Harrods Creek and Westport did not have fire departments at the time.  South 
Oldham Fire Department in Crestwood was just getting started.  Other area fire departments were much too far away to 
respond.  
 

Reacting to this devastating fire, the people around Skylight decided to establish a volunteer fire department.  An 
organizational meeting was held at the Liberty School.  At that meeting it was agreed to ask residents of the area to contribute 
money for a volunteer fire department.  Their contributions would be in proportion to the number of buildings on their farms.  
These contributions ranged from $25 to the smallest farms to $400 for the largest ones.  
  

About 50 farmers signed up for the department and only a few declined.  The organizers decided that following the initial 
contribution, each property owner would be asked to make a small annual contribution of $5 to $10.  The new department 
also would receive $400 per year from the Oldham County Fiscal Court.  The original area covered by the department “ran 
about 3 or 4 miles north and south of Highway 42 and 6 to 7 miles in each direction from Skylight.  This method of funding 
for the NOFD remained basically unchanged until the Fire Protection District was created in 1976. 
 

The original, founding Board of Directors of the NOFD consisted of Harry Nelson, President, Douglas Potter, Secretary-
treasurer, directors Charles Bottorf, Raymond Wilborn, Robert Clore, William Fallis, F.T. Clausen, John Robert Bottorf and 
C.W. Brickley. 
 

The original fire station on Axton Lane just south of US42 was constructed in 1952 at a cost of $2,200 for materials.  Labor 
was almost free, as the construction was done by inmates from the LaGrange Reformatory who were paid 12 cents a day.  The 
first fire apparatus was a 1937 Chevrolet with a pump and a tank, purchased used from the Buechel Fire Department of 
Jefferson County.  The department only used this truck for a short period of time.  
 

A 1951 Ford chassis was purchased and the pump and 500 gallon tank from the Chevrolet were mounted on it.  A wooden 
hose body was installed.  This truck remained part of the NOFD fleet until it was sold in the mid 1990’s.  It is presently 
owned by the Oldham County Historical Society. 
 

The first method of dispatch was a railroad engine bell donated by the L&N Railroad.  The bell was mounted on a pole near 
the fire station.  In case of fire, John Leet, the first Fire Chief, who lived near the station, took the call on his telephone and 
went to the station to sound the bell alerting the volunteer firefighters who lived close enough to hear the alarm.  This alarm 
system survived only a few years.   
 

Although the department was inexperienced and had minimal equipment, they were effective as shown by two articles that 
appeared in the Oldham Era on Friday, August 22, 1952.  They read:  “A truck of the American Chemical Company of 
Cincinnati was partially destroyed by fire Monday when it caught fire at the junction of U.S. 42 & KY 53 north of LaGrange.  
The North Oldham Volunteer Fire Department headed by Harry Nelson prevented a complete loss.  The truck was loaded 
with bleach in gallon bottles.  One tire on the dual wheels blew out and the blaze was caused by friction when the two tires 
rubbed against each other.  The department prevented the spread of the blaze to the motor and gas tank.  Traffic on the 
highway was blocked until the fire was extinguished.” 
 

“A fire which started in the woods on the farm of Mr. & Mrs. Everette Shearer on Highway 42 burned over 20 acres of brush 
and undergrowth Tuesday morning before it was extinguished.  The North Oldham Volunteer Fire Department answered the 
call and stopped its further spread.  The origin of the blaze, which for sometime threatened barns and other nearby buildings, 
is unknown.” 
 

Although records describe the area covered by the department as running “about 3 or 4 miles north and south of Highway 42 
and about 6 or 7 miles in each direction from Skylight” run log entries show runs as far away as LaGrange and Westport. 
 

A new 1957 International fire engine went into service late that year.  This chassis was purchased and the pump and tank 
from the ’51 Ford were transferred to it.  A 1000 gallon tank was then mounted on the 1951 Ford.  The department now had 
two fire apparatus.  The new engine made it’s first run on December 26, 1957, responding to a car fire on Buckeye Lane. 
 

NOVFD experienced major fires on occasion in the early days.  On January 11, 1957, LaGrange was called to assist with a 
structure fire in a roadside motel court.  An entry in the log on November 18, 1959 describes a barn fire where “both engines 
were used”.  On March 19, 1960 fire destroyed an “old school house at Goshen, took both engines.”  Some of the runs that are 
more familiar to us today are not new to the NOVFD, such as a false fire alarm in Oldham Acres on October 28, 1960. 
 

The North Oldham Volunteer Fire Department operated with very limited funds, usually only $2,000 to $3,000 of revenue per 
year.  This continued well into the 1960’s.  A financial report from the annual meeting of 1967 shows total revenues of 
$2,900, expenditures of $2,400 and total assets of $13,000.  The department was still funded by soliciting annual 
subscriptions of $5 to $10 from property owners.  Those that paid were called “members.”  If the department responded to a 
fire at a “member’s” property the service 
was provided free.  If the response was to a “non-member’s” property they were billed between $100 and $200.  Property 
owners were encouraged to subscribe to the department by mail drives and calls from the board members. 
 

In the late 1960’s the North Oldham area began to change.  Growth brought on by people migrating from Louisville/Jefferson 
County to Oldham County resulted in new subdivisions and posed a challenge to the fire department.  The NOVFD still 
operated just two fire trucks from the Skylight station, yet the development was occurring 7 to 8 miles west, near Prospect.  
As a result, the area’s Insurance Rating was Class 10 and  response times were lengthy. 
 

As the NOFD moved into the 1970’s, it was becoming apparent to Chief George Carter that the department needed to make 
significant changes in order to serve a growing area and improve the insurance rating.  He knew that additional apparatus, 
equipment, firefighters and a second station would be needed to meet the demands of the growth. 
 

In 1974, Chief Carter purchased a third fire apparatus, a 4 wheel drive Ford truck with a small tank, a pump and hose, to be 
used for brush fires and a quick response to other types of fires.  The department struggled to pay for this truck and it is said 
that Chief Carter himself, mounted a door-to-door campaign to raise the money to buy it.  This truck remained in service until 
it was sold in July, 2001.   
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The Axton Lane fire station was expanded to house this truck and make room for a future new pumper. 
 

The Chief and the Board realized that the old “membership” method of funding was no longer adequate.  In 1975, talk of 
forming a fire protection district shifted into action.   
 

The drive to establish the fire protection district shifted into high gear with the circulation of petitions.  The district was 
created in February, 1976.  The original members of Board of Trustees are John Hampton, Frank Lyons, Martha Oliver, Hugh 
Crouch, Gilson Guyton, Norman Dick and Robert Hoops.  The new district collected $23,256 in tax revenue for 1977.  By 
1980, that had jumped to $51,869 as a result of all the growth in the area. 
 

With guaranteed revenue for funding, the department, under the leadership of Chief George Carter, purchased a new Ford/E-
One fire engine in 1977 for $32,000 and began efforts to build a second fire station in Goshen.  This would be essential in 
order to reduce the insurance rating from Class 10 to Class 9. 
 

It was about this time that the department began training EMT’s to respond to injury vehicle accidents and medical 
emergencies.  Up to this point, South Oldham and LaGrange provide ambulance service to North Oldham’s district.  While 
their EMT’s were very capable, response times were too long.  North Oldham Fire Department’s initial EMS efforts were first 
responder EMT’s who went to the scene and provided care until South Oldham or LaGrange arrived. 
 

There were difficulties in funding construction of another fire station and purchasing another new fire engine for that station, 
even with the new fire district revenue.  A fund drive was conducted in 1978 to raise funds to build Station 2 and purchase a 
new pumper at a combined cost of $133,000.   Initially, the fund drive was disappointing.  Finally, sufficient funds were 
raised and the remainder borrowed to build the station and buy a 1979 Ford/Darley pumper. 
 

With the opening of Station 2 and the arrival of a new pumper, the majority of the fire district was now within 5 miles of a 
fire station.  The department finally had two Class A pumpers.  That, along with other improvements finally resulted in the 
insurance rating being improved to Class 9. 
 

In 1981, long time Chief George Carter turned the reins of the department over to new Chief Lewis Nugent.  Richard Nugent 
became the Assistant Chief.  Chief Nugent continued to expand the department to keep up with the rapidly growing 
community.  Under his leadership, the department bought hydraulic rescue equipment (jaws-of-life), expanded Station 2 in 
1984, obtained a certificate of need and activated ambulance service in 1985 and improved the department’s insurance rating 
to Class 6 in 1988.   In 1989, the original Axton Lane fire station was replaced by a new Station 1 at 8615 W. U.S. 42.  In 
1990, the department accepted delivery of it’s first diesel powered apparatus with a crew cab, a Ford/Grumman 1250 GPM 
pumper.  This new pumper cost $105,000.  
 

One of the most significant changes in the department occurred under the direction of Chief Lewis Nugent and Assistant 
Chief Richard Nugent.  On April 30, 1990, the NOFD employed it’s first paid firefighters.  Six part-time firefighters made up 
the original “day staff.”  Rich Nugent was among the original day staff employees.  The remainder were full time firefighters 
with the Louisville Fire Department.  The original program provided two paid firefighters at the station weekdays from 8AM 
to 5PM, to maintain equipment, care for the building and grounds and provide a guaranteed response to runs during the 
daylight hours when most of the volunteers are at their regular jobs.  One original day staff member, Louisville Fire Captain 
Scott Hogan, is still employed at NOFD. 
 

By 1991, the Fire District’s revenue had grown to $162,000.  Fire/EMS run volume was approaching 200 per year.  The 
department continued to plan for future growth and the accompanying demand for services. 
 

Lewis Nugent stepped down and Chief Phil Schaad took over in 1994.  Chief Schaad continued to plan for future growth.  He 
added additional apparatus, including a new brush fire unit and ambulance, improved the department’s communications 
equipment, made the switch to large diameter supply hose, expanded the day staff and added the department’s first full time 
day staff supervisor, Captain Michael Morgan.  He also began to plan to improve the department’s insurance rating. 
 

During the 1990’s the department lost two members with the death of retired Chief George Carter and the tragic loss of 
Sergeant Chris Combs in an accident.  Station One in Skylight is dedicated to Chief Carter.  The ambulance and the flagpole 
at Station 2 are dedicated in memory of Sergeant Combs.  Both of these dedicated firefighters and friends are sorely missed. 
 

In 1996, Phil Schaad stepped down and David Wade became Chief.  He served in that position until 1999.  During his term, 
the department hired an additional full-time firefighter and promoted Captain Morgan to Assistant Chief/Administrator.  The 
department also hired a part-time administrative assistant.   Chief Wade continued to update apparatus and equipment.  Two 
1996 Freightliner/Monroe 2000 gallon tankers were delivered in 1997 at a cost of $105,000 each.  In 1998, a new KME 
pumper was delivered at a cost of $234,000. 
 

In the spring of 1999, Chief David Wade stepped down.  Assistant Chief/Administrator Michael Morgan resigned to take a 
Chief’s position with another department.  Deputy Chief David Stoltz was appointed interim Chief.   After a great deal of 
consideration, the Fire District Board made the decision to hire a full time Fire Chief.  This was a significant change for a 
department whose membership had always elected their Chief.  Chief Stoltz’s leadership during this period was superb and 
instrumental in making the transition to a paid chief a smooth one. 
 

In September, 1999, Richard H. Albers became NOFD’s first paid full-time Fire Chief.  His background included 28 years 
fire service experience in paid and volunteer fire departments.  He most recently served as Fire Chief for Florence, KY from 
1990 to 1999. He began his fire service career as a volunteer with St. Matthews Fire Dept. and joined the Louisville Fire 
Dept. in 1977. 
 

The new Chief continued to expand services and plan for the future.  The department has recently acquired new, high-tech 
equipment including a thermal imaging camera, new lightweight breathing apparatus, new state of the art protective gear for 
firefighters and new rescue/extrication equipment.  In July, 2000, the Board of Trustees approved the Chief’s request to 
expand employee staffing levels  
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to guarantee 6 personnel on duty per day, Monday thru Friday from 8AM to 5PM.  All other hours are staffed entirely by 
volunteers. 
   

In October, 2000, NOFD hired a full-time Training and Fire Prevention Coordinator.  Donald A. Dahl was selected from a 
group of highly qualified applicants.   
 

In 2000, we expanded our scope of services to include fire and rescue service on our 11-mile stretch of the Ohio River.  
NOFD operates a fire/rescue boat which is located at the Rose Island Yacht Club.  Our original “fire” boat was a 21’ cabin 
cruiser donated to the department by NOFD Captain Kris Krohn and his wife Joni.  The boat was modified to fit its new role, 
outfitted with water rescue and EMS equipment and a 250 GPM fire pump, hose and foam.    
 

As river activity continued to increase, repair and maintenance costs on the original fireboat began to soar.  Additionally, 
serious reliability and safety issues began to become evident with the old craft.  In 2008, the Board of Trustees authorized the 
purchase of a new fire/rescue boat, specifically designed for our mission with a focus on safety, simplicity of operations and 
speed.  
 

In addition to water rescue and river firefighting, NOFD has initiated a fire and life safety inspection program.  The Chief of 
the Department is “deputized” by the Kentucky State Fire Marshal.  This allows NOFD inspectors to operate with the same 
authority and resources of the State Fire Marshal.  Inspections were initiated in August, 2001.  The goal of this program is to 
ensure that all properties subject to public entry are maintained according to state fire codes and life safety standards. 
 

The expanded services of the NOFD have been achieved through the commitment of the Board of Trustees to provide the best 
possible service to the community.  The North Oldham Fire Department currently operates two fire stations, 3 engines, 2 
quads, 1 quint, 2 tankers, 1 brush fire unit, 1 technical rescue unit, 1 utility vehicle, 1 28’ fire rescue boat, 1 14’ john boat, and 
a 14’ enclosed trailer containing our breathing air refilling system, rehab and command post equipment.  We are staffed by 3 
full-time, 20 part-time and 53 volunteer firefighters and EMT’s.    
 

In June, 2002, NOFD took delivery of a new Quint fire apparatus with a 2000 GPM pump and a 75’ aerial ladder, built by 
Seagrave Fire Apparatus of Clintonville, WI.  It cost $514,300 and is assigned to the Goshen Fire Station. 
 

In July, 2004, the Board of Trustees approved the Chief’s request to expand paid firefighter staffing levels to no less than 6 
personnel on duty per day, Monday thru Friday from 6AM to 6PM.  All other times are staffed entirely by volunteers.    
 
In April of 2007, NOFD took delivery of a new “Quad” fire apparatus for the Skylight Station.  The truck was built on a 
Spartan Gladiator fire apparatus chassis by Custom FIRE Apparatus Company of Osceola, Wisconsin and cost $457,300.  
 
Many improvements in the department over the last several years paid off in late 2005 when the department was evaluated by 
the Insurance Services Office. We were successful in obtaining a lower fire insurance classification for the district.  Effective 
April 1, 2006, our Public Protection Class was lowered from Class 6 to Class 5.  
 
In August, 2003, the Fire District began construction of a new headquarters fire station to replace the old Station 2 on KY 
1793.  
 
We are proud of the accomplishments of all the members of the NOFD as well as all who have served before.  The citizens of 
Skylight planted a seed in 1951 and it has grown steadily for more than 50 years.  We look forward to the next 50 years with 
excitement and enthusiasm.  We are proud to be “Neighbors serving our Community.”  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



1951 
 
April 12, 1951, Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 29, 1951, The Courier-Journal: 
 

April 20 & 29, 1951, Fire Report  



1951 
May 22, 1951 Fire Report      June 1, 1951, Fire Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
June 4, 1951, The Courier-Journal:     June 6, 1951, The Courier-Journal:  

 

 
 



1951 
June 7, 1951, Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 15, 1951, Letter:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



1951 
June 22, 1951, The Courier-Journal  The building of the new G. E. plant in Louisville, 
caused a huge expansion in population and everything else in Jefferson County 



1951 
Courtesy St. Matthews The Crossroads of Beargrass, 1999, by Samuel W. Thomas, Twin Elms Court, now 4520 
Shelbyville Road. Caufield and Shook Collection 257897, University of Louisville Photographic Archives. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Courtesy Ekstrom Library, University of Louisville, CSO-263582, Brownsboro Road & Chenoweth Lane. 
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Courtesy, Clinton E. Ring, neighborhood of Kinglan off of Rudy Lane, 1951.  In front of the old 
Rudy Place.  The Ring family home being built. 
 
 



1951 
Courtesy of Bluegrass-St. Matthews Historical Society:  May, 1951, Service Station opened by 
Robert “Bob” Schulten (died 2008), who sold to  Al Ring, becoming Al Ring’s American Service 

Courtesy of Bluegrass-St. Matthews Historical Society:  Pookman Drugs on corner, canary 
Cottage on down the block, September , 1951 
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July 3, 1951, The Jeffersonian:                                             July 3, 1951, The Jeffersonian:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Courtesy Sidney Eline Jr., Eline Realty Company: 
1951 Potato Festival, that was sponsored by Gordon Chips 



1951 
 
July 11, 1951, Board meeting: 



1951 
July 24  & August 3, 1951, Letters: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
August 9, 1951:  Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1951 
August 16 & 17, 1951, Letters:   
 

 
 

August 23, 1951, The Courier-Journal 

Zoning for new fire station at 
117 St. Matthews Avenue 

 
Zoning Approval for 

117 St. Matthews Avenue 
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August 31, 1951, The Courier-Journal   November 29, 1951, The Courier-Journal 
 



1951 
 
September 1951:  The department bought the property at 117 St. Matthews Avenue from the 
Estate of Mr. Elwanger for $9,500.00. 
 
September 30, 1951:  Board meeting:   

 



1951 
 
October 23, 1951, & November 5, 1951, Fire Report 

November 21, 1951 Fire Report 



1951 
 
October 1953:   

This was an extremely important day in the history of STMFD.  Alan 
Douglas Ring “Al” and family moved from Bridgeport, Connecticut.  Al 
joined the department in 1964 was active a firefighter until 1990.  He 
served in many capacities during this time form training officer, PIO, 
Lieutenant, Captain, Major and President of the Board of Directors.    
From 2009 to Present am the Departments historian and archivist.   
That’s about 52 years of service. 
 
Just kidding and having fun!!!   My first fire truck 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
First STMFD fire I watched from front 
window, January 1, 1956.  Walsher 
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October 31, 19541, The Courier-Journal 



1951 
November 5, 1951:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
    November 8, 1951, Board meeting:   
 

 



1951 
 
November 13, 1951:  Bid on County Fire Truck, to become STMFD   S1 



1951 
 
November 14, 1951:  Jefferson County Fire Truck become STMFD S1: 
 



1951 
 
November 14, 1951:  Jefferson County Fire Truck become STMFD S1 

 
November 15, 1951, The Courier-Journal 
Edited 



1951 
November 14, 1951,   750 G.P.M. Seagrave Fire Truck, Model No. 66 E B Serial NO. D-0855, total 
cost $4,500.00. 
 
 



1951 
December 22 & 28, 1951, Letters: 
 
 



1951 
December 30, 1951, The Courier-Journal:   



1951 
December 30, 1951, The Courier-Journal:   



1951 
 

Civil Defense Fire Department Personnel Census 
 

 



1951 
Jefferson County Agreement with SMMFD: 
 



1951 
 
Jefferson County Agreement with SMMFD: 



1951 
Undated letter to All Fire Chiefs: 
 

 
 



1951 
 
Sample Charges for Fire Runs: 



1951 
 
1951 or 1952:  We believe this picture is from this era.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Top Row, Left to Right:  William Medina, Jim Weixler, Wells Meyer, Unknown, Unknown, Melch 
Zehnder, John M. Monohan, Jr., Dick Wheeler, Jack Monohan, Ed Foley, Marty Kamer, Joe 
Kempf. 
 
Bottom Row, Left to Right:  Allan McNalley, George Westwood, Pete Blackwell, Marty Rueff, Al 
Haeberlin. 
 
Middle Row Left to Right:  Phil Schneider, Billy Smith, Jr., Dan Sullivan, Jr., John Kaster, Denny 
Engnehl, Bob Brenzel, Melvin Schrode. 



1951 
 
 Board Of Directors 

 
Fred C. Boss  
Marty A. Kamer 
George E. Miller 
John M. Monohan Jr. 
Louis H. Schweitzer 
James “JP” Terry 
William Leland Wilson 
Joseph B. “Joe” Zehnder 
 
 
 
 

Officers 
Chief John M. Monohan Jr. 
Assistant Chief Richard C. Herdt 
Captain James “JP” Terry 
Captain John F. Westerman 
Lieutenant Marty A. Kamer 
Lieutenant George R. Westwood 

Firefighters 
C. Fred Baringer 
John A. Beierle 
Morris “Jughead” Blake 
John H. Cauthorn 
Daniel Clark 
Raymond Crabtree 
Denny Engnehl 
Ed Foley 
“PJ” Grimes, Jr. 
Charles H. Hahn 
W. Rich Herdt 
Robert W. “Bob” Hild 
John W. “Bud” Jansen 
John V. Kaster 
Joseph L. “Joe” Kempf 
Joe A. Lentz 
Henry L. McCoy 
Welles P. Meyer 
 

1951 
 

W. “Tommy” Miller 
John M. “Jack” Monohan, III 
Jim L. O’Neal 
Phillip R. Resch 
J. C. Reed 
Frank R. “Randy” Robertson 
Paul B. Sauer 
George J. Stoll, Jr. 
Robert P. Wathen 
Walter L. Wernert 
R. M. “Dick” Wheeler, Jr. 
Raymond K. “Ray” Wilson 
Melchior R. “Melch” Zehnder 
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Courtesy http://www.ballardsvillefire.com/index.htm      Ballardsville Fire Department Started 
 
Established in 1952 in Oldham County Kentucky, we have been proud to serve our fire district 
with excellence in emergency service for over fifty years. Thank you for visiting with us. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Courtesy Chief Don Wittry, Fairdale Fire District:             Fairdale Fire Department Started 
 

THE HISTORY OF FAIRDALE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

The Fairdale Volunteer Fire Department was organized in September of 1952. It was started by people of the community 
holding meetings to determine the need for fire service. These folks determined they could cover a radius of 3 to 5 miles from 
the center of Fairdale.  The human resources were volunteer members of the community.  
 

The Fire House which is located in the center of Fairdale was started in September 1952 and finished in November 1952. I 
was built by members of the community giving their time and labor. 
  

The first truck was delivered November 10, 1952. In 1953 a jeep was purchased and equipped for fighting field fires.  
 

In 1955 a second fire truck was purchased which is a 500 gallon Seagrave. In 1959 another jeep was purchased for fighting 
field fires. 
  

In those early days the fire department is governed by a Board of Directors which consisted of ten members. The Department 
is operated from membership of property owners who pay annual dues for fire protection. The Fire Department has a total of 
two fire trucks and two jeeps. It is operated by a Central radio, a base station, each piece of fire equipment is radio equipped 
and radio receivers in most firemen’s homes. 
 

The Fire Department is operated by a Chief, Assistant Chief, Captain, Lieutenant, 3 Engineers, Secretary, Treasurer, and 2 
Fire Marshals. The Department has a force of 39 men. 
 

With the name "Penile, Fairdale, Coral Ridge, Auburndale, Third Street Road Volunteer Fire Departments, an identity crisis 
is  inevitable. Forced to house the original fire truck in a  private garage on Third Street Road until the completion of the new 
fire station in Fairdale only added to the confusion. 
 

The fire department began as a membership organization and remained funded with citizen donations for over twenty years.   
 

In September 1976 the Fairdale Fire Department moved from the original Manslick Road location (Fairdale Feed & 
Hardware) to a new fire station on Mitchell Hill Road. The original location where Charlie Siemens donated land for a fire 
station in 1952 became an auction house before morphing into the hardware store it once neighbored. 
 

In 1995 the need for a second station was recognized by the 
Board of Trustees and was constructed at 3rd Street Road 
and the Outer Loop. The dedication ceremony to open the 
station was held October 11, 1996.   
   

By year 2000, the Fairdale fire district grew to over 20,000 
residents within this 33 square mile fire district and run 
volumes exceeded 700. Such run volumes dictated to the 
Trustees that the department move up to the next level of 
service with full time firefighters. 
 

On April 1st, 2000 the first paid chief was hired. By August 
1st, 2000 the first career firefighters were hired and 
scheduled for nine hours a day five days per week. Today 
Fairdale Fire Department is staffed with around-the-clock 
career, volunteer, and part-time firefighters from 
neighboring fire departments and they respond with EMS as 
first responders. Run volumes have grown to over 1500 per 
year.  
     1953 



1952 
Courtesy Chief Don Wittry, Fairdale Fire District:             Fairdale Fire Department Started 
 

 
 
 

1955 1957 

1963 

1976 

1976 

1968 

1996 

1975 



1952 
Mr. Merit was the STMFD Attorney. 
 
The City of Beechwood and Fairmeade were started. 
 
Stivers School started. 
 
January 4, 1952, Letters: 

 
 
 



1952 
January 4, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 

 
 
 
 



1952 
January 4, 1952: The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
 

 
 
Left to right bottom, standing:  Ray Wilson, Joe Kempf, Marty Kamer, Rich Herdt, John Cauthorn, Rich Herdt, Sr., 
Charlie Haun. 
Left to right at the top:  John Westerman, George Westwood, John Monohan, Jr., Jim Sauer, Ed Foley, Jim Brenzel, 
J. P. Terry, “Jughead” Blake. 
Apparatus S1. 
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January 4, 1952, Fire Report 



1952 

January 10, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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January 10, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 

 
 
 



1952 

January 11, 1952, Letter:                                                               January 11, 1952, The Jeffersonian: 
 

January 1952, Courtesy David Evans, Harvey Browne 
Presbyterian Church: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1952 

January 18, 1952, The Jeffersonian:                           January 25 & 30, 1952, Letters: 
 

 
 



1952 

January 25, 1952, The Courier-Journal 



1952 

January 26, 1952, The Courier-Journal: 



1952 

January 31, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
Henry L. McCoy, 
STMFD firefighter 



1952 
February 7, 1952:  Board meeting:   
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February 7, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   The fire was January 31, 1952. 

 
 
 
 

 
Courtesy, http://www.hurstbourne.org/content.asp?q_areaprimaryid=2                      Edited 
  
There were 35 rooms in Lyndon Hall, now the Hurstbourne Club House, counting the storage 
rooms, vaults, cold rooms, machinery rooms and many baths. One of the garages behind the Club 
House was once a stable that was the home of the famous race horse, Ten Broeck, named for a 
family that occupied the house at one time. Mrs. Hert's saddle horse, Major Pendennis, and a 
German police dog are buried in marked graves on the estate. The beautiful, white frame house 
beside the Clubhouse belongs to the Charles McNeal family, relatives of Mrs. Hert. 
 
For about twenty years, until her death in 1948, Mrs. Hert lived in her lovely home with its 
beautiful gardens complete with a gazebo and gorgeous strutting peacocks. 
 
The estate was purchased in 1949 by L. LeRoy Highbaugh Sr. and Jr. and the name changed to 
Highbaugh Farms. The Highbaughs lived in the house for a number of years. .then in 1965  began 
to develop the estate into a community to be known as Hurstbourne, with plans for a shopping 
center, offices, schools, churches, a country club complex containing a 27 hole golf course covering 
240 acres, and stately Lyndon Hall as its club house. The streams, creek beds, well planned 
plantings and other natural features, as well as the site of Lynn's Station, its springhouse, the 
Anderson graveyard and old stone out-buildings, have been thoughtfully preserved and carefully 
incorporated into the long range planning for Hurstbourne at the request of L. Leroy Highbaugh, 
Jr. 
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February 7, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:    
 

 
 
 
 
February 17, 1952, The Courier-Journal 
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February 8, 1952, Letter: 

February 7, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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February 14, 1952, Letter:               
 

February 14, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
Future STMFD Board Member 



1952 
 
February 14, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
February 21, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 

 



1952 
 

February 11, 1952, The Courier-Journal:   February 28, 1952, The Courier-Journal:  



1952 
February 28, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 

 
 
 
 
March 5 & 6, 1952, Letters:   
 

 
 



1952 
March 13 & 23, 1952, Letters:   

 
March 13, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   



1952 
March 28, 1952, The Courier-Journal 



1952 
April 4, 5 & 9, 1952, Letter: 

April 3, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 



1952 
April 10, 1952:  The Voice Of St. Matthews:               April 17, 1952:  The Voice Of St. Matthews:   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 7, 1952, Fire Report    April 8, 1952, The Courier-Journal 

Firefighter Al Ring’s 
future boss and then 
station, Robert H. 
Schulten. 



1952 
April 15, 1952:  Board meeting:   



1952 
April 15, 16 & 20, 1952, Letters:   



1952 
April 24, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   

 



1952 
April 29, 1952, Letters:   

April 30, 1952, The Courier-Journal 



1952 

May 2, 1952, Letter:                                                                         May 8, 1952, The Voice Of St.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

May 8, 1952, Board minutes:  
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May 15, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 22, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   
 
 

 
 
 



1952 
June 5, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:                            June 12, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 

 
 
 

June 1952:  Construc-
tion started on a new 
fire house at 117 St. 
Matthews Avenue.  The 
contractor was Roy 
Cochran.  The new sta-
tion was 50 by 75 feet 
and held 5 pieces of fire 
apparatus. 
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June 8, 1952, The Courier-Journal; 
 



1952 
June 12, 1952:  Board meeting:   
 

 
 



1952 

June 19, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:    June 28, 1952, Fire Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 24, 1952, Letter 

 
 
 
 

 
June 26, 1952, The Courier-Journal 



1952 

June 25, 1952:  Special Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 26, 1952, The Voice of St. Matthews:   

 
 
 



1952 
June 25, 1952, Letters—Bids: 

 

 
 



1952 
June 25, 1952, Letters—Bids: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 26, 1952, The Courier-
Journal:   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 June 26, 1952, The Courier-Journal:
 EDITED  
 

 

Contractor chosen 
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Courtesy, St. Matthews The Crossroads of Beargrass, 1999, by Samuel W. Thomas, Pryor’s Mid-
1952, Royal Photo Company Collection 13404.01. University of Louisville Photographic Archives.   

 
Courtesy, St. Matthews The Crossroads of Beargrass, 1999, by Samuel W. Thomas, Looking east at 
intersection of Fairmeade and Shelbyville Roads, 1952. A5-52U. University of Louisville 
Photographic Archives.   
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Picture of the grounds for the present church. This picture was taken at the time of the ground 
breaking in 1952. The photographer had his back to Hubbard's Lane. Massie Avenue   
was on the photographer's right. 
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O’Nan’s father ran an American Oil (Pan Am) Service Station here.  March, 1952 
 

 
Courtesy of Bluegrass-St. Matthews Historical Society:  Just east of Fairmeade Road, September, 
1952 

 
 

St. Matthews Your Community 
Newspaper, July 14, 1949 
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July 2, 1952, Letter:  
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July 3, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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July 9, 1952: Annual Board meeting:   
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July 17, 1952: The Voice Of St. Matthews:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 July 22, 1952, Fire Report 
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July 24, 1952: The Voice Of St. Matthews:   
 
                Future STMFD firefighter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 31, 1952: The Voice Of St. Matthews:                                  
      August 7, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   
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August 6, 1952, Fire Report     August 14, 1952:  Board meeting:   
 

 
August 26, 1952, The Courier-Journal 
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August 14, 1952:  The Voice Of St. Matthews:   
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August 17, 1952, Letter:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August 28, 1952,  
The Voice Of   
St. Matthews: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

August 29, 
1952, The 
Courier-
Journal:
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August 30, 1952:  Special Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August 29, 1952, The Jeffersonian: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August 30, 1952:  Board Resolution:   
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September 4, 1952:  Changed Articles of Incorporation. 
 
 
 



1952 

September 5, 1952, The Jeffersonian:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 7, 1952, The Courier-Journal 



1952 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into on the ____ day of September, 1952, between Jefferson County Fiscal Court, 
party of the first part, and the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Department, party of the second part: 
The party of the first part having adopted a general plan for aid to community fire departments, and the party of the second 
part, desiring to qualify under said plan, it is agreed as follows: 
1.  The party of the second part agrees to give fire protection to citizens of Jefferson County living or owning property within 
the boundaries of the hereinafter described district. 
2.  The party of the second part agrees to maintain a fire department which qualifies for seventh class insurance rates, where 
standard fire plugs are available, and ninth class insurance rates, where there are no fire plugs, according to the rules of the 
Kentucky Inspection Bureau. 
3.  The party of the second part agrees to maintain a crew of at least twelve (12) fully trained firemen and to participate in the 
training program provided by the party of the first part, requiring all of the volunteer firemen to attend the training school to 
be conducted at the fire house of the second party. 
4.  The party of the first part agrees to give financial assistance to the party of the second part not to exceed Eighteen Hundred 
Dollars ($1,800.00) per year, payable quarterly, for the operation and maintenance of said department.  The party of the first 
part further agrees to give financial assistance to the party of the second part, not to exceed One Thousand Dollars 
($1,000.00) for the construction or renovation of its firehouse. 
5.  The funds setout in paragraphs 4 and 7 are to be matched dollar for dollar for money raised by the party of the second part 
and expended or used for fire protection and/or for the erection or renovation of its firehouse.  The party of the second part is 
to furnish proof to the Clerk of the Fiscal Court that it has raised said funds and is to furnish such proof as required by the 
Fiscal Court that said money was raised and used for fire protection, including an adit of its boobs and records.  Said audit 
will be submitted on or before June 15 of the Fiscal year or years covered by this agreement. 
6.  The party of the second part now owns and operates at least one (1) approved pumper.  In the event said second party 
wishes to acquire an additional pumper, the party of the first part will be given notice thereof at least thirty (30) days before 
the order therefore is placed. 
7.  The party of the first part agrees to match funds for money actually raised and spent for the purchase of an additional 
pumper, not to exceed Fifteen Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00).  In no event will the second party be entitled to have funds 
matched in purchasing more than two (2) approved pumpers during the life of the program presently in operation. 
8.  The party of the second part agrees at all times to have at least one (1) pumper and a full crew within the boundaries of the 
hereinafter described district, or to arrange for another department to answer calls during its absence from said district. 
9.  This contract is effective as of July 1, 1952 and shall continue in effect until the Fiscal Court changes its general plan or 
modified by a subsequent agreement in writing.  If either party desires to cancel this agreement on or after June 30, 1953, 
notice thereof must be given sixty (60) days before June 1 or any subsequent year. 
10.  The area covered by this agreement is described as follows:  BEGINNING at the point of intersection of the center line of 
Frankfort avenue and the east line of the City of Louisville; thence southeast with the east line of the City of Louisville and 
continuing with the line of the City of Louisville to the point of intersection with the center line of Cannons Lane and 
Grandview Avenue; thence southwest with the center line of Cannons Lane to the point of intersection with the center line of 
Beauchamp Road; thence southeast with the center line of Beauchamp Road and the center line of Beauchamp Road if 
extended southeast to a point in the North line of the right of way of the Inner Belt Highway (Henry Watterson Expressway); 
thence northeast with the north line of the Inner Belt Highway to the point of intersection with the wet line of Arterburn 
Estate and the east line of the Monohan Estate; thence northwest with the line common to Arterburn and Monohan Estate to 
the point of intersection with the east line of R. W. Marshall and the west line of Zachary Taylor Post 180, American Legion; 
thence north 1860 feet with the line common to the R. W. Marshall and Zachary Taylor Post 180, American Legion to a point 
in the South line of the right of way of the Louisville and Shelbyville Highway, U. S. 60. Said point being 1050 feet east of 
corner to Long and 350 feet west to corner to Arterburn; thence north to a point in the north line of the right of way of the 
Louisville and Shelbyville Highway, U. S. 60, said point being 1169.69 feet east of east line of Sage Road and also being 
southeast corner of James J. Butler Estate and the east line of the City of Beechwood Village; thence northeast with the line 
common to James J. Butler Estate and City of Beechwood Village 2075.79 feet to a corner thence northeast with line common 
to City of Beechwood Village and the Arterburn Estate 1228.20 feet to corner; thence northwest with the line of the City of 
Beechwood Village 866.89 feet to a point in the south line of the right of way of the Louisville and Nashville Railroad; thence 
southwest with the line common to the City of Beechwood Village and right of way of the Louisville and Nashville Railroad; 
1880 feet to the point of intersection with west line of Beechwood Road if extended; thence northwest with the west line of 
Beechwood Road if extended and west of line of Beechwood Road 2545 feet to a point in the north line of the right of way of 
Westport Road; thence northeast with the north line of the right of way of Westport Road 661 feet to a point of intersection 
with line common to R. W. Hite and Foeburn  

 
 
 



1952 
Subdivision; thence west with line common to R. W. Hite and Foeburn Subdivision 656.83 feet to corner; thence northwest 
with line common to R. W. Hite and Foeburn Subdivision 272 feet to corner; thence northeast with line common to R. W. 
Hite and Schwartz, 676 feet to corner; thence northeast with line common to R. W. Hite and Greenbriar Subdivision 948 feet 
to a point in the east line of Merrifield Subdivision and west line of J. Hildenbrand if extended; thence northwest with the east 
line of Merrifield Subdivision and west line of Hildenbrand if extended and the east line of Merrifield Subdivision and the 
west line of Hildenbrand 4385 feet to a point in the north line of right of way of the Brownsboro Road, said point being 475 
feet east of the east line of Rudy Lane; thence Southwest with the north line of right of way of Brownsboro Road to the point 
of intersection with line common to Zachary Taylor National Cemetery and Blakely; thence northwest with line common to 
Zachary Taylor National cemetery and Blakely to southeast corner to Lampton; thence northwest with line common to 
Lampton and Blakely to southeast corner to Smithfield Subdivision; thence northeast with line common to Smithfield 
Subdivision and Blakely 769 feet to the northeast corner to Smithfiled Subdivision and Rupp; thence southwest with line 
common to Smithfield Subdivision and Rupp 1565 feet to the center line of Blankenbaker Lane; thence north with the center 
line of Blankenbaker Lane 355 feet to the point of intersection with the northeast line of Indian Hills-Cherokee Unit #4; 
thence northeast with the north line of Indian Hills-Cherokee Unit #4 and the north line of Indian Hills developing Company 
to the point of intersection with the northeast line of the City of Indian Hills; thence continuing northwest with the line of the 
City of Indian Hills to the point of intersection with north line of Rolling Fields section #3; thence with north line of Rolling 
Fields Section #3 and the north line of rolling Fields Section #2 to a point in the center line of Swing Lane thence with the 
center line of Swing Lane to the point of intersection with the east line of the City of Louisville; thence with the east line of 
the City of Louisville and continuing with the line of City of Louisville to the point of beginning. 
 

September 11, 1952:  Board meeting:   
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September 11 & 25, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   
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September 26, 1952:  There appears to have been a wreck involving S1.  On November 13 the 
Board agreed to file suit against the driver and Indemnity Insurance Company. 
 
The wreck took place in front of the City of Richlawn on Shelbyville Road. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 29, 1952:  Louisville 8, Ky., 1502 – So. 7th St.   St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Depart., 113 
Breckenridge Lane 
St. Matthews, Ky., Dear Sirs: 
I have your letter stating that you are moving out of the concrete block building you have been 
renting from me to house your two Fire Engines, as of Oct. 1st 1952. 
Also have your letter in which you quoted me a price on your building. 
I have decided I do not wish the building and I request that you remove it as soon as you vacate 
the premises. 
I would like for you to leave the concrete floor as it is since it would be of no value to you to break 
it up and remove it. 
Sincerely yours,  Ralph E. Whitehead 
 
 
September 4, 1952, The Courier-Journal 
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1952, Unknown dates of construction of new station, 117 St. Matthews Avenue:   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 11, 1952, The Courier
-Journal:    
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September, October and November, 1952:  The department was averaging about 4 weed and field fires a 
week.  Captain J. P. Terry requested the Voice to print an article asking the residents to please be careful when 
burning trash, because they can so easily get out of control.  Many garages were damaged because of this. 
 
 

October 2, 1952:  The department moved to the brand new quarters at 117 St. Matthews Avenue. 
 

 

October 2, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   
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October 2, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   
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October, 3, 1952, Letter 
 

 
 
 
 
October 7, 1952:  First fire from new firehouse was a field/weed fire next door to 3929 Leland 
Road. 
 
October 1952:  The department demolished the old firehouse, as requested by the owner of the lot, Mr. Whitehead. 
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October 9, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
 
 
 

Louisville Times, around this time frame 

October 11, 1952, The Courier-Journal: 
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October 10, 1952, Judge B. L. Shamburger inspected the new building and equipment. 
 
October 12, 1952:  Board meeting:   
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October 16, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   October 23, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
 
Wife of Firefighter from 1941 to 1953 
 

 
 

Don’t try to read this page, articles on next page: 
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October 1952, Fire Reports 
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October 23, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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October 23, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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October 23, 1952:  The Voice of St. Matthews:  St. Matthews Volunteer Firemen Hold Open House Sunday In New 
Modern Building.  Knock on Wood!  But with no serious fire since 1945, the Greater St. Matthews area has more than one 
good reason for turning out Sunday to help the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Association observe Open House in its brand new 
headquarters building at 117 St. Mathews Avenue. 
With fingers crossed, and hoping for continued good luck, the volunteer department isn’t asking for a community pat on the 
back.  Rather, the 35 active members, the officers, and the directors simply want the public to visit the new fire house, inspect 
the modern equipment, and realize that it takes community support in terms of cash to carry on and to continue to improve 
service and facilities. 
 
“Dues are due,” they say, for every property owner within the three mile radius that the St. Matthews firemen serve.  The 
minimum subscription is $3.00. 
With several “firsts” to its credit, the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Association has received recognition as one of the largest, 
most-efficient, and best equipped volunteer departments in Kentucky. 
But it wasn’t always so. 
Although it is the oldest volunteer department in Jefferson county, it started in a very humble manner with its incorporation as 
an association in December, 1919. 
Started With Model T:  Its equipment consisted of one Model T Ford Truck, which was housed in the part of the Eline 
Chevrolet building that is now occupied by Morgan’s Men’s Shop and Clay’s 5¢ & 10¢.  Later, it was moved to A. L. 
Hansen’s paint shop, then located where Martin’s Grocery is now. 
Young and ambitious to improve its facilities, the Association in 1923 and 1924 built its own building on Breckinridge Lane, 
the building which is now occupied by Linebach’s Shoe Service.  When completed, the Model T. truck moved in. 
At that time, Jesse Ogden owned and operated the corner drug store, and lived upstairs.  He was the kingpin of the Volunteer 
Fire Department throughout his life in St. Matthews, and donated use of the land upon which the fire station was built. 
Fire association meetings were always held in his drug store.  His upstairs bedroom was equipped with the alarm signal, and 
he took time off from his self-appointed duty as alarm custodian only twice a year, Labor Day and Christmas Day.  On Labor 
Day he always operated a successful wheel at the annual American Legion carnival. 
Ogden was assisted by his son John Henry Ogden, who placed phone calls to the volunteers each time the alarm sounded. 
Throughout the period from 1919 until March, 1931, fire insurance in the St. Matthews area cost 96¢ per $100 of property 
valuation. 
Upon receipt of a new Seagrave pumper in March 1931, the fire insurance rate dropped to 84¢ per $100. 
Pumper at Lyndon:  Still owned by the association, the 1931 Seagrave pumper has been used by the Lyndon Volunteer Fire 
department since August 1951.  It will come back home to the new headquarters building (117 St. Matthews Avenue), upon 
arrival of a new pumper purchased by the Lyndon department which is expected this weekend. 
Purchase of a second Seagraves pumper was authorized by the association directors in February 1941.  At the same time, 
construction of a new and larger fire station, right next door was authorized.  The building was completed in May, just in time 
to receive the new pumper. 
That building was razed this month, by agreement with Ralph Whitehead, owner of the property, immediately after the new 
fire station was occupied on St. Matthews Avenue. 
Although property in Jefferson county receives fire protection now only from volunteer departments, except in Anchorage, 
there was a time, not too long ago, when service was also supplied by paid departments. 
In 1946, three tax paid fire departments were set up, and each equipped with a pumper.  They were located at Middletown, 
Newburg, and Pleasure Ridge, one unit for each magisterial district. 
John M. Monohan, Jr., chief of the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Department, recalls that the Middletown pumper was on 
display at the first St. Matthews Potato Festival in the summer of 1947. 
The county department was abolished in January, 1950, and the St. Matthews volunteer association purchased the pumper that 
had been stationed at Middletown.  The pumper moved to St. Matthews in November, 1951. 
Serve Area Doubled:  The year 1951 was a memorable one for the department in another way, too.  The Kentucky 
Inspection Bureau granted the St. Matthews department an extension of territory from 1 ½ to three miles, the only volunteer 
association in the county authorized to serve such a large area. 
That recognition was given, due to the department’s low fire loss record, equipment, efficiency, and because of the formation 
of other volunteer departments in the general area. 
At the same time, seventh class insurance rates were reduced another 9¢ from 33¢ to 24¢, as at present.  Seventh class rates 
apply within 1,000 feet of a fire hydrant and within three miles of the St. Matthews Volunteer fire department. 
In September, 1951, the lot for the new, and still larger, fire station was purchased by the association from the Elwanger 
estate.  Construction started in June, 1952, with Roy Cochran as general contractor.  The building was occupied October 1. 
The building was officially inspected on October 10 by Fiscal Court Judge Boman L. Shamburger. 
Phone On Trucks:  Another “first” acquired by the St. Matthews fire department came with installation of mobile telephone 
equipment on one of the trucks.  All volunteer fire departments in Jefferson County are now so equipped, enabling the chiefs 
to call other departments, county police, or even to call the Mrs. To tell her “I’ll be late for supper, hon; I’m out on a run.” 
Again, knock on wood, but the St. Matthews department has fought only three Big fires.  (note, I am not sure I agree with 
their idea of big). 
Holy Trinity church burned down to the foundation in September, 1937.  The rear part of the Ford Agency building was 
destroyed by fire in 1943; since rebuilt, it is now occupied by the St. Mathews Trim Shop and Consolidated Sales.  The third 
fire was in 1945 when the A & P burned out where Buck’s and other stores are now. 
Since the death of Jesse Ogden in 1945, the department has been indebted to Mr. T. Hopkins of the Belmont Cab Co. for 
answering all fire calls gratis and summoning the volunteer members of the department by phone calls to their homes or 
business places. 
By arrangement with the telephone company, the department can also be summoned in case of fire by dialing “O” and asking 
for the St. Matthews fire department.   
Constant improvement of the department can be credited to the board of directors, the chief and his officers, and the willing 
cooperation of the 35 active members of the department. 
John M. Monohan, who has been the department chief since 1941, is assisted by Richard Herdt, assistant chief; J. P. Terry 
and John  

 
 
 



1952 
October 23, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
Westerman, captains; Martin Kamer and George Westwood, lieutenants. 
Former chiefs of the department were:  Xavier Schuler, Andrew Neichter, Raymond Young, and Henry Monohan. 
The present board of directors consists of Monohan, president; E. L. Wilson vice-president; George Miller, secretary; 
Fred Boss, treasurer; J. P. Terry, Martin Kamer, Louis Schweitzer and Joe Zehnder. 
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October 24, 1952, The Courier-Journal:   
 
 

 
 
 

November 21, 1952, The Courier-Journal:  
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October 26, 1952:  Open House at the new fire house. 
 

 
Left to right:  Randy Robertson, Ray Wilson, John Monohan, Jr., J. P. Terry, R. M. Wheeler, J. B. Kaster, John 
Cauthorn, Ed Foley, Jack Monohan, Charlie Haun, Marty Kamer. 
 
 

 
Ed Foley and John 
Monohan,  
Jr. on right. 

 
 
F. R. Robertson, J. V. 
Kaster,   
J. H. Cauthorn and J. B. 
Ross, Training on left. 
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                              Rich Herdt, Sr.                             John V. Kaster 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
      
 
 
               
 
 
 
 

               Ed Foley                           J. P. Terry                                                                   J. P. Terry (driver), Ed Foley 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
                      
R.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
                        M. “Dick” Wheeler Jr.                       Chief John M. Monohan. 
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October 23, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: :  10:45 a.m., a fire started from hot ashes and burned an 
adjoining garage at the home of Howard Hopkins 82 Warrior Road.  2 cars were destroyed, a 1950 Dodge, and a 1951 
Ford.  Also the study, den, and front bedroom located above the garage were burned out. 
 
St. Matthews now had a new fire house and 3 good pumpers, Betsy, the 1941 Ford-Seagrave 500 GPM Pumper and 
the 1947 Seagrave 750 GPM pumper. 
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October 23, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:   
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October 30, 1952, The 
Voice Of St. 
Matthews: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 30, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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November 6, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews:        November 13, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 7, 1952, Letter:  
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November 13, 1952, Board meeting: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 13, 1952, Letter:   
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November 1952, Fire Reports 
 

 
 
 

November 21, 1952, The Courier-Journal    edited 
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November 20, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
December 11, 1952:  Board meeting:   
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November 22, 1952, The Courier-Journal: 
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December 13, 1952, The Courier-Journal: 
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Courtesy of Connie Corey (62) .                                Orville J. Stivers School 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Courtesy The Voice of St. Matthews, August 28, 1952. 
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December 18, 1952, The Voice Of St. Matthews: 
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December 19, 1952, Letter:                                                               December 19, 1952, The 
Jeffersonian: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sample charge for fire run: 
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December 19, 1952, Letter:                                                               December 19, 1952, The Jeffersonian: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sample charge for fire run: 
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1952 Softball Team: 
 
From left to right front row:  Joe Kempf, John Kaster, John M. Monohan, Jr., Dick Wheeler, Rich 
Herdt, and Denny Engnehl. 
 
From left to right middle row:  Rich Herdt Sr., J. P. Terry, Phil Resch, Paul Sauer, George 
Westwood, Paul Dawson, Wells P. Meyer, Melvin Schrode, Ed Foley and Mel Zehnder. 
 

From left to right back row:  Pete Blackwell, John Carr, Kent Tully, Walter Wernert and Jack 
Monohan. 
 

 
 

 
 



1952 

 
 
 

Board Of Directors 
 
Fred C. Boss  
Marty A. Kamer 
George E. Miller 
John M. Monohan Jr. 
Louis H. Schweitzer 
James “JP” Terry 
William Leland Wilson 
Joseph B. “Joe” Zehnder 
 
 

Officers 
Chief John M. Monohan Jr. 
Assistant Chief Richard C. Herdt 
Captain James “JP” Terry 
Captain John F. Westerman 
Lieutenant Marty A. Kamer 
Lieutenant George R. Westwood 

Firefighters 
C. Fred Baringer 
John A. Beierle 
Morris “Jughead” Blake 
John H. Cauthorn 
Daniel Clark 
Raymond Crabtree 
Denny Engnehl 
William Eskridge 
Ed Foley 
“PJ” Grimes, Jr. 
Charles H. Hahn 
W. Rich Herdt 
John V. Kaster 
Rudy E. Kaster 
Joseph L. “Joe” Kempf 
Henry L. McCoy 
William E. “Bill” Medina 
Welles P. Meyer 
 

1952 
 

W. “Tommy” Miller 
John M. “Jack” Monohan, III 
Jim L. O’Neal 
Phillip R. Resch 
J. C. Reed 
Frank R. “Randy” Robertson 
Paul B. Sauer 
George J. Stoll, Jr. 
John K. Kint Tully 
Robert P. Wathen 
Walter L. Wernert 
R. M. “Dick” Wheeler, Jr. 
Raymond K. “Ray” Wilson 
Melchior R. “Melch” Zehnder 


